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23  Screenshot of environment information (time, date and year) entered to locate the sun 
correctly (see section 7.3)

24  Screenshot of some materials in the 3D rendering package

25  Screenshot of material and surface properties

26  Example of rendered scheme using High Dynamic Range Imaging

27  Example of a proposed scheme highlighted in red within the selected sky and rendered 
onto the background plate
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7.0 POST PRODUCTION

7.1 Post production
Finally the rendered image of the scheme model is inserted and positioned 
against the camera matched background plate. Once in position the rendered 
images are edited using Adobe Photoshop®8. Masks are created in Photoshop 
where the line of sight to the rendered image of the proposed scheme is 
interrupted by foreground buildings (as shown in Figure 29). 

The result is a verified image or view of the proposed scheme (as shown 
in Figure 30).

8 Adobe Photoshop® is the industry standard image editing software.
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28  Background plate

29  Process Red area highlights the Photoshop mask that hides the unseen portion of the render

30  Shows a photo-realistic verified image

29 30
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THE ROUNDHOUSE
6 contributions

Overview
Heritage Category: Listed Building

Grade: II*

List Entry Number: 1258103

Date first listed: 10-Jun-1954

Date of most recent amendment: 11-Jan-1999

Statutory Address: THE ROUNDHOUSE, CHALK FARM ROAD

Map
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© Crown Copyright and database right 2019. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100024900. 
© British Crown and SeaZone Solutions Limited 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 102006.006. 
Use of this data is subject to Terms and Conditions (https://www.historicengland.org.uk/terms/website-terms-
conditions/).

The above map is for quick reference purposes only and may not be to scale. For a copy of the
full scale map, please see the attached PDF - 1258103 .pdf 

The PDF will be generated from our live systems and may take a few minutes to download
depending on how busy our servers are. We apologise for this delay.

This copy shows the entry on 09-Apr-2019 at 13:15:42.

Location
Statutory Address: THE ROUNDHOUSE, CHALK FARM ROAD

The building or site itself may lie within the boundary of more than one authority.

County: Greater London Authority

District: Camden (London Borough)

National Grid Reference: TQ 28297 84302
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Details
CAMDEN 
 
TQ2884SW CHALK FARM ROAD 798-1/64/194 (South West side) 10/06/54 The Roundhouse
(Formerly Listed as: CHALK FARM ROAD The Round House Theatre) 
 
GV II* 
 
Formerly known as: Warehouse of W & A Gilbey Ltd CHALK FARM ROAD. Goods locomotive
shed, now theatre. 1846-7. By Robert B Dockray. For the London and North Western Railway.
Built by Branson & Gwyther. Converted for use as a theatre 1967 and 1985. Yellow stock brick.
Low pitched conical slate roof having a central smoke louvre, now glazed, and bracketed
eaves. Circular plan 48m in diameter. Buttresses with o sets mark bays each having a shallow,
recessed rectangular panel. Former entrances and windows with round-arched heads.
INTERIOR: roof carried on 24 cast-iron Doric columns (defining original locomotive spurs) and
a framework of curved ribs. Believed to retain original flooring, turn table and fragments of
early railway lines. Wooden gallery probably added by Gilbeys, late C19. HISTORICAL NOTE:
the building did not last long as an engine shed; by the 1860s the engines had become too
long to be turned and stored there so it was leased to W & A Gilbey Ltd as a liquor store until
converted to a theatre in the 1960s. (Survey of London: Vol. XXI, Tottenham Court Road and
Neighbourhood, St Pancras III: London: -1949: 114). 
 
 
 
 
 
Listing NGR: TQ2829784302

Legacy
The contents of this record have been generated from a legacy data system.

Legacy System number: 476873

Legacy System: LBS
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Sources

Books and journals 
'Survey of London' in Survey of London - Tottenham Court Road and Neighbourhood St
Pancras Part 3: Volume 21, (1949), 114 

Legal
This building is listed under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
as amended for its special architectural or historic interest.

End of o icial listing
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HORSE HOSPITAL WITH RAMPS AND
BOUNDARY WALL AT NORTH OF SITE

Overview
Heritage Category:
Listed Building

Grade:
II*

List Entry Number:
1258100

Date first listed:
30-Sep-1981

Date of most recent amendment:
28-Jan-2013

Statutory Address:
STABLES YARD, STABLES MARKET, CHALK FARM ROAD
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Map

© Crown Copyright and database right 2019. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number
100024900.
© British Crown and SeaZone Solutions Limited 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 102006.006.
Use of this data is subject to TTeerrmmss aanndd CCoonnddiittiioonnss.

The above map is for quick reference purposes only and may not be to scale. For a copy of the full scale map, please see the
attached PDF - 11225588110000 ..ppddff
(http://mapservices.HistoricEngland.org.uk/printwebservicehle/StatutoryPrint.svc/473361/HLE_A4L_Grade|HLE_A3L_Grade.pdf)

The PDF will be generated from our live systems and may take a few minutes to download depending on how busy our
servers are. We apologise for this delay.

This copy shows the entry on 16-Jul-2019 at 10:09:46.

Location

The building or site itself may lie within the boundary of more than one authority.

Statutory Address:
STABLES YARD, STABLES MARKET, CHALK FARM ROAD

County:
Greater London Authority

District:
Camden (London Borough)
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Parish:
Non Civil Parish

National Grid Reference:
TQ2850984260

Summary
Stables. Built 1882-3 for the London and North-Western Railway. Designed by the London and North Western Railway (LNWR)
Engineer’s Department. Extended 1897. C20 conversion to market use.

Reasons for Designation
The Horse Hospital, Stables Yard is listed at Grade II* for the following principal reasons:

* Architectural interest and intactness: a fine example of a C19 industrial stabling complete with horse ramps and interior
fittings, including stalls, mangers and hay racks;

* Historic interest and group value: an important component of the Camden Goods Depot, one of the most complete groups
of C19 railway buildings and associated canal structures in England.

History
The Camden Goods Depot was originally constructed as the London terminus for goods tra ic on the London and
Birmingham Railway (L&BR), the capital’s first inter-city main line railway and the largest civil engineering project yet
attempted in the country. The site was chosen by Robert Stephenson (1803-59), the company’s engineer, since it allowed
interconnection for freight with the London docks via the Regent’s Canal, built 1812-1820. 

Work started on a 25-acre site north of the canal purchased from Lord Southampton in January 1837 and the goods depot
opened to tra ic in 1839. The site included the stationary winding engine house for pulling trains up the inline from Euston to
Camden (listed at Grade II*); a locomotive house; 18 coke ovens for making smokeless fuel for locomotives; two goods sheds
and stabling for 50 horses; stores and a wagon repair shop. There were also cattle pens and o ices. The sidings, the
locomotive shed and No.1 Goods Shed were all constructed on brick vaults. Further goods sheds and stabling was
subsequently built for the public carriers, such as Pickford & Co, who had rights to the distribution of goods on the L&BR until
1846 when the L&BR decided to carry out the carriage of goods through their own agents – the same year L&BR merged with
other lines to become the London and North-Western Railway (LNWR). The Pickford goods shed was built in 1841 (enlarged in
1845) by William Cubitt (1791-1863) on the south side of the canal and linked to the goods yard by a second wooden railway
bridge and was the first such rail, road and canal interchange building

In 1846-8 due to the rapid growth in passenger and goods tra ic and the increase in locomotive size, the Goods Depot was
overhauled to the designs of the Resident Engineer, Robert Dockray (1811-71). New structures were built, including two
engine houses, notably that for goods engines (now the Roundhouse – listed at Grade II*) to the north of the main line tracks,
and one for passenger engines to the south (demolished in 1966). There was also a construction shop for repairs to the north
of No. 1 Goods Shed and other structures including a new railway bridge to the former Pickford & Co warehouse.

In 1854-6 another major upgrading of the site was undertaken following the construction of the rail link to the London docks
in 1851, and further increases in goods tra ic which required a larger marshalling yard. The North London Railway (NLR) lines
were repositioned to the north of the site and the recently built construction shop dismantled (leaving its vaults) to make way
for this. Sidings were extended to the edge of the canal either side of the interchange basin which was realigned and enlarged
to its present size. As a result of these changes in layout a new stables yard was constructed between the NLR tracks and the
Hampstead Road. This contained four new stable ranges with a horse tunnel (the Eastern Horse Tunnel) linking them to the
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marshalling yards to the south. At the same time further stables were built on the western side of the mainline tracks o
Gloucester Road (now Gloucester Avenue) and linked to the goods depot by the Western Horse Tunnel.

Further changes to the site took place in the later C19 including the construction of the LNWR goods shed in 1864, then the
largest in the country (enlarged in 1931 and subsequently demolished). The goods depot closed around 1980.

The surviving elements of Camden Goods Yard, along with the Roundhouse, stationary winding engine house, Primrose Hill
Tunnel Eastern Portals (also listed at Grade II*) and Regent’s Canal represent a particularly important concentration of C19
transport and industrial buildings illustrating the development of canal and rail goods shipment.

The stables and ‘Horse Hospital’ Victorian railway goods depots required large numbers of horses for the transfer of goods
and shunting of wagons. At its peak, around 700-800 horses were used at the Camden Goods Depot and by the early 1900s
the LNWR provided accommodation for something like 6,000 horses nationally.

Stabling for 50 horses at the original 1839 goods depot was provided in the vaults below the railway sidings. By 1849,
increased goods tra ic meant that 427 horses were employed on the site. As part of the 1846-7 remodelling, four stable
blocks, with stalls for 168 horses, were built between the sidings and Chalk Farm Road and let to tenants, whilst other horses
were stabled in vaults below the Construction Shop and the Pickford’s warehouse on the east side of the canal. In 1854-6, the
further remodelling of the depot resulted in the demolition of the original free-standing stable blocks and the construction of
the present blocks to the south-east. The four blocks are estimated to have stabled 162 horses and Stables Yard was linked to
the rest of the depot by the Eastern Horse Tunnel. The Horse Hospital, as it came to be known, was built to the north-west of
the other stables in 1882-3 and extended to the south-east in 1897. The first phase accommodated 92 horses with 40 more in
the second phase. Major additional stabling had also been provided in about 1855 on the southwest side of Gloucester Road
and more stable ranges on the north side in 1876. Both were linked to the Western Horse Tunnel, the second group by the
existing horse stairs. The first group was demolished in the 1960s (to make way for Waterside Place) and the second group in
2000. The Horse Hospital has been converted to use as shops with a music venue on the upper floor.

Details
EXTERIOR The building consists of two adjoining ranges, the larger western range dating to 1882-3 and the eastern to 1897,
built on a narrow sloping site along the boundary wall to Chalk Farm Road. The building is of yellow stock brick laid in English
bond and a pitched slate roof with two sets of wooden ventilation louvers on the ridge of the western range. Details are in red
brick consisting of floor bands, dentilled cornices, segmental window heads and oculi to the end gables of the western range
(that to the eastern gable obscured by the later range). The two-storey southern elevation is stepped back to mark the
building phases. The first phase comprises five bays and had accommodation for 92 horses using both storeys. The second
phase comprises three two-storey stable bays (with the easternmost bay stepped back) and a single-storey mess with a
hipped roof on the eastern end. This accommodated a further 40 horses.

The bays of the western range are divided by brick pilaster strips into panels of plain brickwork, relieved by pairs of small
segmental-headed windows set high up under a red brick dentil cornice. The ground-floor bays have pairs of cast-iron
pilasters with classical detailing either side of wide openings and supporting cast-iron girders. The openings were originally
flanked by large multi-pane wooden windows but this arrangement survives intact only in the central bay, others having been
altered to incorporate varying modern shop fronts, some retaining the original upper windows. The large openings indicate
that the building was probably originally intended to be used as cart sheds rather than solely as stabling. Due to the slope of
the land, the northern elevation is expressed externally as a single-storey, detailed in the same manner as the upper storey of
the south elevation. Two window openings towards the centre of the elevation have been converted into doorways opening
onto a modern entrance platform. The upper storey of the west gable end has a central doorway flanked by paired windows
and opening onto a raised brick platform reached from the horse ramp which curves round the west end of the building. At
ground floor level is a small lean-to with sloping slate roof, originally the boiler house. 

The eastern range is simpler with the side elevations having a continuous run of upper storey windows of the same pattern as
the west range. This arrangement was repeated, with larger windows, on the ground floor but some windows have been
converted into doors including a large carriage entrance. The northern elevation has low windows on the ground floor due to
the slope of the land and a large arched entrance with blue engineering brick quoins at the west end. This was originally
entered via a short horse ramp from the setted roadway on the embankment running along the north of the building but has
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now been re-modelled as steps.

INTERIOR The 1883 range has cast-iron columns with bell capitals, supporting brick jack arching on the ground floor and
timber roof trusses on the upper floor. The original brick-paved floors survive on both floors. The western section of the first
floor retains twelve horse stalls with iron doorposts and timber boxes below the iron grilles and rails. Some stalls retain their
mangers and hay racks and the remains of the wooden ventilation sha s. The stalls were used for the resting of tired or lame
horses and their existence probably accounts for the building becoming known as the ‘Horse Hospital’ although it was
unlikely to have been used for veterinary purposes. No stable fittings survive on the ground floor.

The interior of the 1897 range is plainer with I-section stanchions supporting the brick jack arching. No stable fittings survive
in this range.

SUBSIDIARY FEATURES The high boundary wall to Chalk Farm Road, north of the Horse Hospital, was built in 1854-6 to retain
the fill deposited to raise the level of the Camden Goods Depot. The wall is of multi-coloured stock brick laid in English bond
with broad brick piers and stone coping. The infill between the wall and the horse hospital is topped by a sloping roadway
with stone setts and kerbs of stone sleeper blocks from the early days of the railway (the modern stalls which line the
northern side of the roadway are not of special interest). At the west end of the building it joins the horse ramp which curves
round the western end of the Horse Hospital and gave additional access to its upper storey. The horse ramp has brick
retaining walls with stone copings and a stoned setted ramp. The curve to the east is a later realignment.

Legacy
The contents of this record have been generated from a legacy data system.

Legacy System number:
476871

Legacy System:
LBS

Sources
Books and journals
Biddle, G, Britain’s Historic Railway Buildings, (2003), 13
Cherry, B, Pevsner, N, The Buildings of England: London 4, North, (1998 revised 2001), 365-366
Other
Peter Darley, Stables Complex and Underground Features in Former Camden Goods Depot , 2010, 

Legal
This building is listed under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended for its special
architectural or historic interest.

End of o icial listing

Images of England
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Images of England was a photographic record of every listed building in England, created as a snap shot of listed buildings at
the turn of the millennium. These photographs of the exterior of listed buildings were taken by volunteers between 1999 and
2008. The project was supported by the Heritage Lottery Fund.

Date: 04 Sep 2004

Reference: IOE01/13026/06

Rights: Copyright IoE Mr Matthew Perrement. Source Historic England Archive

Archive image, may not represent current condition of site.
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Chalk Farm Underground Station
5 contributions

Overview
Heritage Category: Listed Building

Grade: II

List Entry Number: 1401028

Date first listed: 20-Jul-2011

Statutory Address: Chalk Farm Underground Station, HAVERSTOCK HILL

Map
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© Crown Copyright and database right 2019. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100024900. 
© British Crown and SeaZone Solutions Limited 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 102006.006. 
Use of this data is subject to Terms and Conditions (https://www.historicengland.org.uk/terms/website-terms-
conditions/).

The above map is for quick reference purposes only and may not be to scale. For a copy of the
full scale map, please see the attached PDF - 1401028 .pdf 

The PDF will be generated from our live systems and may take a few minutes to download
depending on how busy our servers are. We apologise for this delay.

This copy shows the entry on 09-Apr-2019 at 13:17:15.

Location
Statutory Address: Chalk Farm Underground Station, HAVERSTOCK HILL

The building or site itself may lie within the boundary of more than one authority.

County: Greater London Authority

District: Camden (London Borough)

Parish: Non Civil Parish

National Grid Reference: TQ2813484408

Summary
Underground railway station. Built 1906-7 by the Underground Electric Railways Co of London
Ltd (UERL) under Charles Tyson Yerkes, serving the Charing Cross, Euston & Hampstead
Railway (CCE&HR), later part of the Northern Line. Designed by Leslie Green.

Reasons for Designation
Chalk Farm Underground Station is designated for the following principal reasons: 
 
* Architectural interest: a good example of a station designed by Leslie Green to serve the
CC&HR, later the Northern Line; situated at the acute angle of the road junction, it is externally
the most impressive and distinctive of the surviving Green stations, and retains three early
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tiled Underground signs, now rare * Interior: while altered, features of interest survive
including tiling at lower levels * Historic interest: the Yerkes group of stations designed by
Leslie Green illustrate a remarkable phase in the development of the capital's transport
system, with the pioneering use of a strong and consistent corporate image; the characteristic
ox-blood faience façades are instantly recognisable and count among the most iconic of
London building types

History
The CCE&HR was one of three tube lines opened 1906-7 by the UERL. The world's first deep-
level tube line, the City & South London Railway (C&SLR), had opened in 1890 from the City to
Stockwell, and although a flurry of proposals for further routes ensued, progress was
hampered by lack of capital until the Central London Railway Line (later the Central Line)
opened in 1900. In 1901-2 the American transport entrepreneur, Charles Tyson Yerkes,
acquired four dormant companies: the CCE&HR; the Brompton & Piccadilly Circus Railway and
the Great Northern & Strand Railway (GN&SR), which were merged as the GNP&BR, and the
Baker Street & Waterloo Railway; the three were incorporated into the UERL. Yerkes died in
1905 before the tube lines were completed. The CCE&HR, or 'Hampstead Railway' or 'Tube',
opened on 22 June 1907, running from Charing Cross to Camden Town where it diverged,
terminating at Highgate (now Archway) in the north, and Golders Green in the north west, with
13 intermediate stations. In 1910 the three UERL tubes were formally merged as the London
Electric Railway (LER). In 1924-6, the former CCE&HR and C&SLR lines were joined, becoming
the Northern Line in 1937. 
 
Leslie Green (1875-1908) was appointed Architect to the UERL in 1903 and designed 40
stations for the company in a distinctive Edwardian Baroque house style clad in ox-blood
faience. They followed a standardised design and plan adapted to the site. Interiors
comprised a ground-floor ticket hall with li s, a spiral stair down to lower corridors, and
further stairs down to the platforms which were usually parallel. The upper storey housed li
machinery and o ice space. Ticket halls featured deep-green tiling with a stylised acanthus
leaf or pomegranate frieze, and ticket windows in aedicular surrounds; few of these features
now survive. Stairs, corridors and platforms were faced in glazed tiles with directional signage,
produced by various tile manufacturers, each station with its unique colour scheme. Green
su ered ill health and his contract with UERL terminated at the end of 1907. He died the
following year at the age of 33.
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Details
MATERIALS: Steel frame clad in brick, faced in ox-blood red faience produced by the Leeds
Fireclay Co Ltd.  
 
EXTERIOR: The station occupies a prominent site at the convergence of Adelaide Road and
Haverstock Hill, and has two elevations meeting at an acute angle with a curved apex. 2
storeys high. It originally had an opposing entrance and exit on both elevations; those on N
side now blocked. S elevation in Adelaide Road is the longest of all the Green stations and
consists of 8 pilastered bays arranged 3-1-1-3 with alternating half-bays, the triple bays
forming a continuous arcade, terminating in a half-bay at the W. Entrance is in the penultimate
bay to the W, while the former exit further E is now a shop. The curved apex is accentuated by
an overhanging upper floor with a pedimented tripartite window. The ground floor was always
a shop, originally an Express Dairy, which also occupied the 3 adjacent bays on both sides of
the angle; the shop front is modern. The shorter N elevation has similar treatment with 6 main
bays arranged 2-1-1-2 of which the eastern single bay was an entrance. Both elevations retain
original windows to some bays, while others have been been infilled with faience. Upper
storey has timber Diocletian windows in keyed semi-circular arches with egg-and-dart
decoration and cartouches between the springers of the arcaded bays, and a modillion
cornice. Each half-bay has a deeply hooded oeil-de-boeuf. 
 
Above the entrance, the former exit on the N side, and the shop front at the apex, are blue tile
signs with white relief lettering reading UNDERGROUND, added in 1908. Frieze lettering has
otherwise been removed. To the right of the entrance is a 1930s pole and roundel
Underground sign. 
 
INTERIOR: Ticket hall retains a number of features including moulded cornices, an early brass
clock, six-panelled door with paterae, fluted timber wall banding and railings enclosing the
top of the stair. Tiling has been replicated to the 1906 pattern. Some original mauve terrazzo
flooring survives in the disused exit area to the rear of the li s. Original tiling in dark red and
cream survives in the spiral staircase and lower corridors; that to the platforms replicated in
2005, apart from the so it banding and some remnants of directional signs. 
 

Sources
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Books and journals 
Horne, M A C, The Northern Line: an Illustrated History, (1987) 
Lawrence, D, Underground Architecture, (1994) 
Lebo , D, The Underground Stations of Leslie Green , (2002) 
Menear, L, London Underground Stations: a social and architectural study, (1983) 
Rose, D, Tiles of the Unexpected, (2007) 
Wolmar, C, The Subterranean Railway , (2004) 

Legal
This building is listed under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
as amended for its special architectural or historic interest.

End of o icial listing
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Church of St Saviour
6 contributions

Overview
Heritage Category: Listed Building

Grade: II

List Entry Number: 1342063

Date first listed: 14-May-1974

Statutory Address: Church of St Saviour, Eton Road

Map
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This copy shows the entry on 18-Apr-2019 at 11:45:06.

Location
Statutory Address: Church of St Saviour, Eton Road

The building or site itself may lie within the boundary of more than one authority.

County: Greater London Authority

District: Camden (London Borough)

National Grid Reference: TQ 27838 84499

Details
TQ2784NE 798-1/52/413 
 
CAMDEN ETON ROAD (south east side) Church of St Saviour 14/05/74 GV II Church. c1855-56.
By E.M Barry; built by Lucas Bros. Alterations 1883 by Ewan Christian. Chancel lengthened
1902 by W.D Caröe. Kentish ragstone random rubble with Bath stone dressings. Slated roofs.
Early English style with nave of four bays, clerestory, aisles, transepts, turret and tower at
south west corner. Angle buttressed tower with moulded entrance, two-light plate tracery
windows and arcaded belfry with Lombard type frieze; broach spire with lucarnes. Paired
lancets to aisles; transepts, east and west windows triple lancets.  
 
INTERIOR: not inspected but noted to have open timber roof. Glass by Clayton and Bell. 
 
Listing NGR: TQ2783884499
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Legacy
The contents of this record have been generated from a legacy data system.

Legacy System number: 477214

Legacy System: LBS

Sources

Books and journals 
The Victoria History of the County of Middlesex: Volume IX, (1989), 151 
Clarke, Basil F L, Parish Churches of London, (1966), 78 

Legal
This building is listed under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
as amended for its special architectural or historic interest.

End of o icial listing
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